
 
 

Planning Board – August 28, 2017, 6:30PM 
City Hall Council Chambers – 3 Washington Street, 2nd floor 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. Call to order – roll call 
 
II. Minutes of previous meeting – July 24, 2017 and August 1, 2017 Special Planning Board Meeting 
 
III. Public Hearings 

SPR-09-17 – MoCo Arts – 38 Roxbury Street – Site Plan – Applicant Jim Phippard of Brickstone Land 
Use Consultants, LLC on behalf of MoCo Arts proposes to construct a new 2-story, 16,533 SF 
performing arts center at the site of the former YMCA. The site is .79 acres in size and located in the 
Central Business Zoning District and the Historic District (TMP# 017-07-016). 

 
IV. Continued Public Hearings 

SPR-578, Mod. 1 – 219 West Street – Mobil Gas Station – Site Plan – Applicant/Owner Summit 
Distributing, LLC proposes re-development of a gas station/convenience store/canopy/underground fuel 
storage and shifting of Ashuelot Street driveway.  The site is 18,240 sf in size and located in the 
Commerce Zoning District (TMP# 098-02-014). 
 

S-04-17 – 62 Nims Road – Conservation Residential Development Subdivision – Applicant Wendy 
Pelletier of Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owners John & Frances Bolles, requests a 
Conditional Use Permit to subdivide property located at 62 Nims Road into a 3-lot Conservation 
Residential Development with 11.74 acres placed into open space. A waiver is requested from Section 
VI.9.b of the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations to allow each lot to be accessed 
from Nims Road.  The existing site is 19.48 acres in size and located in the Rural Zoning District 
(TMP# 903-19-015). 

 
V. Public Hearings 

S-05-17 – 618 Court Street – Subdivision – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal Surveying & Land 
Planning, on behalf of owner Mark Harper proposes to subdivide property located 618 Court Street.  
The site is .75 acres in size and located in the Low Density Zoning District (TMP# 118-02-010). 
 
S-06-17 – 490 Washington Street – Subdivision – Applicant/Owner Toby Tousley proposes to 
subdivide property located 490 Washington Street.  The site is 2.61 acres in size and located in the Low 
Density Zoning District (TMP# 012-02-005). 
 
SPR-967, Mod. 8G – 0 Cypress Street – Site Plan – Applicant Rob Hitchcock of SVE Associates, on 
behalf owner Railroad Street Condominium Association proposes 4 additional parking spaces on 
Cypress Street.  The site is 9.28 acres in size and located in the Central Business Zoning District 
(TMP# 023-04-027). 

 
VI. New Business 
 
VII. Director Reports 
 Transition to Electronic Devices  
 
VIII. Upcoming Dates of Interest – September 2017 

Planning Board Meeting – September 25, 6:30 PM 
Planning Board Steering Committee – September 12, 12:00 PM 
Joint PB/PLD Committee – September 11, 6:30 PM 
Planning Board Site Visits – September 20, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 

Page 1 of 79



THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

Page 2 of 79



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

July 24, 2017 

 

Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF KEENE 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

PLANNING BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 

 
Monday, July 24, 2017 6:30 PM Council Chambers 

 

Members Present 

Gary Spykman, Chairman  

Mayor Kendall Lane 

Andrew Bohannon 

Martha Landry 

George Hansel 

Pamela Russell Slack 

Chris Cusack 

Nathaniel Stout 

 

Staff: 

Rhett Lamb, Asst. City Manager/Planning 

Director 

Michele Chalice, Planner 

Tara Kessler, Planner 

 

Members Not Present: 

Douglas Barrett, Vice-Chair 

Tammy Adams, Alternate 

David Webb, Alternate 

I. Call to order – Roll Call 

Chair Spykman called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and a roll was taken. 

 

II. Minutes of previous meeting – June 26, 2017 

 

A motion was made George Hansel to accept the June 26, 2017 minutes. The motion was 

seconded by Mayor Kendall Lane and was unanimously approved.  

 

III. Public Hearings 
1. S-04-17 Public Hearing– 62 Nims Road – Subdivision – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of 

Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owners John & Frances Bolles, proposes to 

subdivide property located 62 Nims Road into three lots.  A waiver is requested from Section 

III.B.6 Hillside Protection of the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations. The 

existing site is 19.48 acres in size and located in the Rural Zoning District (TMP# 903-19-015). 

 

2. S-03-17 – 72 Old Walpole Road – Subdivision – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal 

Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf owner, Rick Willson proposes to subdivide property 

located 72 Old Walpole Road.  The site is 1.03 acres in size and located in the Low Density 

Zoning District (TMP# 152-04-003. 

 

Chair Spykman stated because of an error on the abutter notices these two items will not be 

addressed tonight. He indicated the items will be heard at a Special Planning Board meeting 

scheduled for Tuesday, August 1. 

 

3. SPR-08-17 – Water & Grove Streets – Site Plan – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of 

Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf owner Jeanette Wright proposes a commercial 

parking lot.  The site is 4,635 SF in size and located in the High Density Zoning District 

(TMP# 028-03-011). 

 

Chair Spykman read into the record a letter from Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning asking 

that this item be withdrawn from today’s agenda as there was an incomplete list on the abutter 

list for the Zoning Board hearing where this item was originally heard. The applicant will be 

Page 3 of 79



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

July 24, 2017 

 

Page 2 of 4 

applying to go before the Zoning Board on September 5 and then reapply to come back before 

the Planning Board. 

 

A motion was made by Mayor Kendall Lane to accept the applicant’s request to withdraw this 

application. The motion was seconded by George Hansel and was unanimously approved.  

 

4. SPR-578, Mod. 1 – 219 West Street – Mobil Gas Station – Site Plan – Applicant/ 

Owner Summit Distributing, LLC proposes re-development of a gas station/convenience 

store/canopy/underground fuel storage and shifting of Ashuelot Street driveway.  The site is 

18,240 sf in size and located in the Commerce Zoning District (TMP# 098-02-014). 

 

A.   Board Determination of Completeness. 

Michelle Chalice recommended to the Board that Application SPR-578, Mod. 1 was complete. A 

motion was made by George Hansel that the Board accept this application as complete. The 

motion was seconded by Pamela Russell-Slack and was unanimously approved. 

 

B. Public Hearing 

Mr. Tom Frawley of Summit Distributing and Mr. Huseyin Sevincgil of NHF Design were the 

next two speakers. Mr. Sevincgil with reference to a rendering stated the existing site is an 860 

square foot convenience store located behind the existing canopy. The canopy has two existing 

fuel dispensers with four fueling positions. The proposal is to demolish the 860 square foot 

convenience store.  The 4,000 square foot building will be remodeled into a new convenience 

store and the existing canopy will be replaced and four fuel dispensers with eight fueling 

positions will be added. The existing two driveways on West Street would remain; the driveway 

on Ashuelot will be moved further away from the intersection of Ashuelot and West Streets. 

 

There will be sidewalk constructed in front of the 4,000 square foot building with parking in 

front. Parking in the rear will remain. There will be certain drainage improvements done on the 

site which has been reviewed by staff. The only customer entrance would be located at the front 

of the site.  

 

Councilor Hansel asked whether the foot print of the larger building is going to be expanded to 

the rear. Mr. Frawley answered in the negative. 

 

Chair Spykman asked the applicant to address traffic. Mr. Sevincgil stated they had a traffic 

consultant prepare trip generation. The proposal is to remove some of the retail space and expand 

the larger foot print. According to the trip generation done based on the ITE Standards – AM had 

three total trips, PM had 31 total trips, Saturday 16 total trips (peak hour).  After the proposed 

development, AM peak hour 41 total trips, PM peak hour 54 total trips, Saturday 28 total trips 

during mid-day peak hour.  

 

Councilor Hansel asked what the treatment was going to be around the dumpster. Mr. Sevincgil 

stated it would be a cedar fence, six feet high with double gates.  

 

Chair Spykman felt the curb cuts along West Street seem wide open and asked for a more 

distinct in and out lanes. Mayor Lane expressed his concern about access to this site from West 

Street as well and asked how the applicant plans on having traffic use the curb cuts as 

designated. He added from West Street accessing the bank is unsafe as traffic exiting the gas 

pumps turn right in front of those waiting to turn into the bank; this traffic should be required to 

use the curb cut and asked how that was going to be delineated and asked for some sort of 

Page 4 of 79



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

July 24, 2017 

 

Page 3 of 4 

mitigation. Ms. Landry asked what happens to traffic that exits the gas pumps and want to access 

the bagel shop or bank if there was some sort of barrier. Mayor Lane stated if there was a barrier 

from West Street back about 50 to 75 feet, if they wanted to go into the bagel shop, take a right 

hand turn out of the pump and then go in the entrance of the bagel shop.  

 

Mr. Lamb suggested that perhaps the applicant could work with the adjacent property  owner on 

a shared curb cut which would allow for the exits to be a little cleaner out of the dispensing 

stations. This would provide for one defined curb cut which would provide access to both sites. 

Chair Spykman felt there are quite a few potential conflicts at this site and this might be a good 

opportunity to clean up a stretch of West Street which can be a “free for all” for traffic entering 

and exiting this site. Mayor Lane noted with the parking being moved to the front of the site, it 

gives more opportunity for traffic to enter and exit the site on the side.  

 

Mr. Frawley stated they also have concern about the traffic traveling east on West Street 

attempting to enter this site which could cause some head on situations which they are trying to 

avoid. Mr. Frawley stated they will work with the engineers on a solution. 

 

Staff comments were next. Ms. Chalice stated the applicant is working with the city to clean up 

some drainage problems on this site. They will be taking the roof top runoff and using an LID 

measure to infiltrate that water.  

 

Screening – The applicant started out with a chain link fence but has now settled on wooden 

fencing which is more in keeping with the city’s standards.  

 

Lighting – The project is utilizing all dark sky fixtures, fully shielded. The under canopy lighting 

is also within the Board’s standards. 

 

Comprehensive Access Management – A bike rack is being provided to be utilized by staff and 

customers. They are also using material to keep with the city’s architectural character.  

 

Traffic – Traffic generation memo was requested because of the doubling in the fueling stations. 

The building will also be nearly as big as the Cumberland Farm gas station located on Main 

Street. There is going to be a dramatic expansion of the retail space. Ms. Chalice stated the 

Cass’s Closet site which used to be located here does not come anywhere close to what this new 

use will generate in traffic. The other concern is the delay to West Street traffic because of the 

delay in turning movements right at this intersection. The City Engineer and planning staff are 

asking for a full traffic report to better understand the full impact. 

 

Ms. Russell-Slack did not feel the comparison to Cumberland Farm Gas station was a good 

comparison as this is the only gas station on Main Street except for the one on lower Main Street. 

She stated she is aware of this site and her biggest concern is the traffic that cuts through this site 

to avoid the light. Ms. Russell-Slack stated she likes just having one curb cut on Ashuelot Street. 

 

Mr. Stout felt the nature of this business is not going to bring in new traffic but will bring in a 

different traffic pattern and felt re-directing the traffic on the property might be prudent.  

 

Mayor Lane asked about parking in front of the building and asked for staff’s opinion. Ms. 

Chalice stated the Board does have this policy and this might have been something she missed. 

Mr. Lamb felt this is something staff should be working with the applicant on. He noted staff is 

asking for a continuance so that the traffic issue could also be addressed.  

Page 5 of 79



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

July 24, 2017 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Mr. Lamb stated when the Mascoma Bank came before the Board there were some difficult 

maneuvers that were added to that parking lot to create some conflict and not have a direct route. 

He added this is always an issue with any corner lot and added this is something staff could work 

on with the applicant.  

 

Ms. Landry asked whether the Police Department could provide the number of accidents that 

have happened at this site. Mr. Lamb stated this something that will be provided with a traffic 

report.  

 

Councilor Hansel asked the applicant to explain how gas trucks will access the site. Mr. Frawley 

referred to the route on the plan and added 80% of the deliveries will happen between midnight 

and 6 am.  

 

The Chairman asked for public comment, with no comments from the public the Chairman 

closed the public hearing.  

 

C.   Board Discussion and Action  

A motion was made by Mayor Kendall Lane that the Planning Board continue this application to 

the August 28 Planning Board meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilor George Hansel 

and was unanimously approved.  

 

VI. New Business 

None 

 

VII. Director Reports 

Transition to Electronic Devices – Mr. Lamb stated this item will be addressed during the August 

meeting and staff would make sure the Board is properly updated on this issue.  

 

VII. Upcoming Dates of Interest – August 2017 

Planning Board Meeting – August 28, 6:30 PM 

Planning Board Steering Committee – August 15, 12:00 PM 

Joint PB/PLD Committee – August 14, 6:30 PM 

Planning Board Site Visits – August 23, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 

 

On a unanimous vote, the meeting adjourned at 7:25 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Krishni Pahl 

Minute Taker 

 

Reviewed by: Rhett Lamb, Planning Director 

Edits, Lee Langella 

Page 6 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 1 of 7 

CITY OF KEENE 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

SPECIAL PLANNING BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, August 1, 2017 6:30 PM Council Chambers 

 

Members Present 

Nathaniel Stout, Acting Chairman  

Martha Landry 

Pamela Russell Slack 

David Webb 

Tammy Adams 

 

Members Not Present 

Gary Spykman 

Douglas Barrett 

Chris Cusack 

Councilor George Hansel 

Mayor Kendall Lane 

Andrew Bohannon 

 

Staff: 

Rhett Lamb, Asst. City Manager/Planning 

Director 

Tara Kessler, Planner 

Michele Chalice, Planner 

 

 

 

 

I. Call to order – Roll Call 

A motion was made by Pamela Russell Slack to nominate Nathaniel Stout to act as Chairman for 

today’s meeting. The motion was seconded by Martha Landry and was unanimously approved. 

 

Chair Stout called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and a roll call was taken. 

 

II.  Public Hearing 
1. S-04-17 – 62 Nims Road – Subdivision – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal  

Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owners John & Frances Bolles, proposes to subdivide 

property located 62 Nims Road into three lots.  A waiver is requested from Section III.B.6 

Hillside Protection of the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations. The existing 

site is 19.48 acres in size and located in the Rural Zoning District (TMP# 903-19-015). 

 

A.   Board Determination of Completeness. 

Planner Tara Kessler stated the applicant is requesting exemptions to provide the following 

technical reports: grading, landscaping, lighting, drainage, and traffic. As this is a subdivision 

that has no proposed development at this time, staff is agreeable to granting the requested 

exemption and recommend to the Board that Application S-04-17 was complete.  

A motion was made by Pamela Russell Slack that the Board accept this application as complete. 

The motion was seconded by Martha Landry and was unanimously approved. 

 

B. Public Hearing 

Ms. Wendy Pelletier addressed the Board and referred to this three-lot subdivision and to Nims 

Road and Concord Road on the plan. Ms. Pelletier stated this is a 19 acre lot encumbered by 

wetlands and steep slopes. The middle lot has the existing home with the well and septic, the 

southern lot will have the barn and the northern lot has no structures on it.   

Page 7 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Ms. Pelletier stated the Hillside Protection Ordinance prohibits development on steep slopes. She 

noted the standard dictates that you can only use 50% of the precautionary slope – the northern 

lot is 5.45 acres but only 2.6 acres are usable, which makes it an unbuildable lot. The applicant is 

asking for a waiver as they feel they have enough building area (1.13 acres). If the applicant had 

gone with a CRD Subdivision they would have been permitted to go with one-acre lots and 

would not have had to account for the steep slopes and could have accounted for 20,000 square 

feet of buildable area, which the applicant does have. 

 

Ms. Pelletier then went over the waiver criteria: 

 

a) That granting the waiver will not be contrary to the spirit and intent of these Regulations; 

All the development being proposed is in the existing open area. There are no trees being 

proposed to be cut down in the steep slopes. 

 

b) That granting the waiver will not increase the potential for creating adverse impacts to 

abutters, the community or the environment;  

The first abutter is 25 feet from the property line and the next house is about 500 feet away. She 

did not feel the proposal would have any impact on the abutters. Otter Brook Dam is to the east 

and they would not be impacted by any of the building.  

 

c) That granting the waiver has not been shown to diminish the property values of abutting 

properties. 

Any building being proposed would be residential and in keeping with the look of the 

neighborhood. 

 

d) Consideration will also be given to whether strict conformity with the regulations or 

Development Standards would pose an unnecessary hardship to the applicant. 

There is no way to get a five-acre lot out of what exists here. 

 

Ms. Landry asked for explanation of what is being proposed versus a CRD. Ms. Pelletier 

explained a CRD is an alternative subdivision where part of the lot would have been placed in 

conservation and the applicant would have been permitted to go with smaller lot size.  The 

applicant did not want to pursue this option.  

 

Ms. Russell-Slack clarified the waiver is only for the five acre lot. Ms. Pelletier agreed. 

 

Mr. Webb asked what happens if someone purchased this parcel; what would prevent them from 

clear cutting this parcel. Ms. Kessler stated any future owner would also need to abide with the 

Hillside Protection Ordinance. That applicant would have to prove they are not impacting 20,000 

square feet of precautionary slope as well as changing the vegetative cover. 

 

Chair Stout asked if all three lots were built out, under the five-acre zoning or the CRD how they 

would look different. Ms. Pelletier stated the building area would be in the same place, the new 

buyer would be purchasing an acre or so of land and the rest would go into conservation. 

 

Staff comments were next. Ms. Kessler stated the applicant is proposing to create three lots from 

a 19.4 acre lot. The northern lot would be 5.54 acres (waiver being requested) the middle lot 

would be 7.41 acres (existing house) and the southern lot would be 6.5 acres. Since there is no 

Page 8 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 3 of 7 

new development is being proposed, the Board’s development standards are not applicable, 

except for Hillside Protection and Surface Water.  

 

Ms. Kessler stated with respect to Hillside Protection, the site is covered by steep slopes; 8.5% of 

prohibitive slopes (slopes are greater than 25%) and 20% are precautionary slopes (15% - 20%). 

Subdivision Regulations not the Zoning Ordinance require an applicant to exclude all prohibitive 

slopes and 50% of precautionary slopes from the calculation of minimum lot size. In a rural zone 

the minimum lot size is five acres and if the prohibitive slopes were taken out of this lot it would 

not meet the minimum lot size. This is what the applicant is seeking a waiver from. As there is 

no development being proposed this time, it is not a waiver from the Hillside Protection 

Ordinance and even if they were to receive a waiver it still does not discount them from having 

to meet the requirements of the Hillside Protection Ordinance.  

 

The manner in which to make sure they will abide by the rules of the Hillside Protection 

Ordinance is to make this part of the Building Permit Application process.  

 

Chair Stout asked if this waiver was approved whether it will go into effect when they want to 

build on this site. Ms. Kessler stated the waiver is only for the subdivision to occur. She also 

noted if this site was to be developed it would happen on the southern lot unless a conditional use 

permit was obtained to build into the steep slopes.  

 

Sewer and Water – No city water and sewer service on Nims Road, applicant has shown these 

houses would be suitable for a well, septic system and leach field.  

 

Surface Water and Wetlands – There are wetlands present on this property and the applicant has 

excluded this area from the calculation of minimum lot size. There is approximately 1.7 acres of 

wetland on the southeast portion of the site and two smaller areas that encroach the northern lot.  

 

Ms. Landry referred to the August 1 letter from Cardinal Surveying and asked if the applicant 

was to go the CRD route whether they will be able to use up to 20,000 square feet of 

precautionary slopes. Ms. Kessler stated CRD is an alternative to the conventional subdivision 

where it takes into consideration natural features of an area (steep slopes, wetlands etc.) and 

allows a property owner to build around those features. A CRD is required for proposals of three 

new lots and a road; in this case only three lots are being proposed and not a road and this is why 

it is not a requirement. Mr. Lamb added a CRD will create a permanent restriction on land that is 

set aside for conservation purpose either through a covenant or an easement. Mr. Lamb noted 

this may be a difficult piece of property to put a CRD in place as there is already a house located 

on it.  

 

Chair Stout asked how many CRD’s the City has approved. Mr. Lamb stated it is about two or 

three (Daniels Hill Road and Darling Road) and there is development on both these properties. 

Ms. Landry asked whether a CRD could have a negative financial impact on the value of a 

property. Mr. Lamb stated that was hard to predict. 

 

The Chair asked for public comment next. 

 

Ms. Eileen Sarson who lives north of this property asked how this will affect the use of her 

property if it is in one designation versus a CRD; could something be posted on her property say 

no trespassing or is she obligated to have property use her land.  

Page 9 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 4 of 7 

Mr. Lamb stated typically the designated open space is owned by an association; the 

conservation value is protected by an easement and is monitored by an entity such as the 

Monadnock Conservancy. It is privately owned land so there is no requirement for public access 

but the owners could choose to permit access to the public. 

 

Ms. Adams asked whether there was any exploration of alternate lot size or alternate boundaries. 

Ms. Pelletier stated she has proposed about four iterations of layouts, in order to get another lot, 

but it would have to be a back lot with minimum frontage and a very long driveway. The further 

back you move there are other issues that arise.  

 

With no further comments, the Chair closed the public hearing. 

 

Ms. Landry stated she believes in property owners being able to develop their property but felt it 

was important to honor the hillside and protect the steep slopes. She felt this can both be done 

with a CRD. 

 

Ms. Russell Slack stated she was on the Council when this Ordinance was approved and stated 

she had also visited this property. She added she has difficulty approving this proposal the way it 

is but agreed the applicant has done more work with it since she visited the site. Mr. Webb stated 

he too is leaning towards a CRD. 

 

Chair Stout felt the shape of these lots were not unreasonable and did not feel the difference 

between the buildable areas is that stark to be denied. He felt the building codes and zoning 

standards should be used to ensure development meet city standards. He expressed the burden 

the denial would put on the applicant. 

 

Ms. Russell Slack asked what the burden to the applicant would be should this application not be 

approved. 

 

The Chairman reopened the public hearing to hear from the applicant.  

 

John Bolles applicant stated his mother is currently in a nursing home. He stated his mother 

needs as much finances out of this project as possible. He noted they already have 20,000 square 

feet to be able to accommodate the third lot. He clarified that he does need the waiver for the 

steep slopes even though he is not going to build on it. Ms. Kessler explained the Zoning 

Ordinance needs five acres to meet the minimum lot size and the subdivision regulations indicate 

you have to exclude all the prohibitive slopes and 50% of the precautionary slopes, which is 

close to three acres which will leave the applicant with a little over two acres. The reason Ms. 

Pelletier is asking for a waiver is because it does not meet the minimum of five acres. Ms. 

Kessler went on to say what Mr. Bolles is saying is that Ms. Pelletier has proved that there is 

adequate land area to construct a house, well and a septic system without impacting the steep 

slopes.  

 

Mr. Bolles stated his mother did not want “post-it” size house lots and hence the reason they 

constructed on the center lot. 

 

The Chairman closed the public hearing.  

 

Mr. Webb asked for clarification as to what the CRD would do to the three lots. Chair Stout 

stated a CRD would open up all three lots as a single conservation residential district and then 

Page 10 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 5 of 7 

gets redeveloped as smaller lot and the larger lot gets put into a covenant disallowing any further 

development to occur. Mr. Lamb stated with a CRD you would start the process over again; the 

primary values of land for conservation will be identified. After which the appropriate locations 

will be identified to situate building sites. Chair Stout asked whether there could be denser 

development on this lot under a CRD. Mr. Lamb stated the maximum number would be three 

and this is done through a zoning calculation. 

 

Ms. Landry clarified with a CRD the applicant is assured all three lots are buildable and stated 

she saw value in that option. Mr. Lamb added Ms. Pelletier has identified a little over two acres 

which is buildable and which area is not affected by hillsides.  

 

Ms. Adams stated after listening to the testimony she is inclined to grant the waiver, having 

confidence in the standards with respect to construction on prohibitive slopes. Chair Stout added 

if the Board did not approve this proposal they would continue this application, giving the 

applicant time to reconsider their approach. Chair Stout asked staff if this matter was continued 

whether the applicant would come back with a CRD or a subdivision application. Mr. Lamb 

stated it would be up to the applicant and asked that the Board not deny the application but rather 

continue the matter giving the applicant the opportunity to come back with an alternative. Mr. 

Lamb added staff could work with the applicant and bring some ideas back as well.  

 

C.   Board Discussion and Action  

A motion was made by Martha Landry that the Planning Board continue the Public hearing for 

Application S-04-17 to the August 28 Planning Board meeting. The motion was seconded by 

Pamela Russell Slack and was unanimously approved. 

  

2. S-03-17 – 72 Old Walpole Road – Subdivision – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of  

Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf owner, Rick Willson proposes to subdivide 

property located 72 Old Walpole Road.  The site is 1.03 acres in size and located in the Low 

Density Zoning District (TMP# 152-04-003). 

 

A.   Board Determination of Completeness. 

Planner Michele Chalice stated the applicant has requested site specific exemptions which are 

not present on this site and recommended to the Board that Application S-03-17 was complete. A 

motion was made by David Webb that the Board accept this application as complete. The motion 

was seconded by Martha Landry and was unanimously approved. 

 

B. Public Hearing 

Ms. Pelletier referred to Old Walpole Road on a Plan and referred to the proposed lot which has 

two dwellings on it. There are two driveway entrances, one to the house and the other services 

both dwellings. The proposal is for a back lot, 24,000 square feet in size with both residences on 

the front lot. The existing driveway will be used as a shared driveway. The lot is serviced by city 

water and sewer. No waivers are being requested.  

 

The Chairman asked whether the second driveway will be shared with the back lot and the 

second house. Ms. Pelletier agreed it would be shared from the property line.  

 

Staff comments were next. Ms. Chalice stated this property is part of the Maple Acres 

neighborhood. There are no wetlands, no steep slopes or surface waters to take into 

consideration. She noted the two driveways on the property have been in existence prior to 1989 

before the driveway regulations were put in place. The two dwelling structures have been on this 

Page 11 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 6 of 7 

site as well since that time. The site meets the 10,000 square foot lot requirement, no 

development is being proposed at this time so the rest of the Board Regulations are not 

applicable. 

 

Chair Stout asked whether there was no possibility for access to the back lot from anywhere else. 

Ms. Chalice stated the applicant would need an additional driveway access for that to occur and 

this would mean three driveways - and that would not be prudent for this area given the traffic on 

Old Walpole Road. Chair Stout asked why this application did not come before the Board sooner 

if it was this simple and also added he has heard criticism in the past of lots shaped in this 

manner, which are referred to as a pork chop lot. Ms. Chalice stated she wasn’t sure what the 

applicant’s intention for this design was but noted there are quite a few lots in similar size on Old 

Walpole Road.  

 

Chair Stout asked about a driveway being located right on the boundary line and clarified the 

Board doesn’t usually ask for a setback. Ms. Chalice stated that they normally do but this is an 

existing driveway and the Board is likely to hear from an abutter. The Chair asked whether a 

condition could be added to move the driveway three feet back form the property line. Mr. Lamb 

stated the Board at this time is not talking about a site plan application; this is a subdivision 

application but it is unique in that it has two existing driveways and the existing condition is 

allowed as it pre-existed the City’s Driveway Standards. However, the extension of the driveway 

to the buildable portion would have to comply with all the current standards and this is a three 

foot minimum from the property line. The Chair asked whether the Board could dictate the 

length of the driveway. Mr. Lamb stated there is a limit of 300 feet before it needs Planning 

Board approval. Ms. Pelletier stated the length is 200 feet. 

 

Chair Stout opened the public hearing. 

 

Ms. Cynthia Harrington of 1 Glen Road stated she is concerned about the driveway that goes to 

the back of the house. She noted in the winter when the snow gets pushed from that driveway it 

gets pushed to the left corner of Glen Road which causes a visual barrier to exit out of Glen 

Road. There is also excess water from snow that goes down Old Walpole Road and eats away the 

road. Ms. Harrington asked whether she can be assured this would be just one building lot. Chair 

Stout agreed it would be as this property is located in the low density zone.  

 

Mr. Anthony DiTullio of 58 Old Walpole Road stated the new lot being proposed would be in 

his back yard. He noted what it sounds like it that there is going to be a building where one is not 

supposed to be located which would eventually cause him to sell his property. He stated his likes 

the wooded area that exists right now. Mr. DiTullio felt too many houses are possibly going to be 

located in a small area. He raised concern about the dwellings that will surround the shared 

driveway. 

 

Mr. DiTullio stated he likes the location they live as it takes away from the congestion of the rest 

of the city and adding a building to that lot would congest things 

 

Chair Stout asked Mr. DiTullio whether he would consider a vegetative screening. Mr. DiTullio 

felt it wouldn’t be the same as having a wooded lot, one row of vegetation would not be the same 

as having 200 feet of a wooded lot in his backyard.  

 

Mr. Rick Wilson, owner of the property stated Mr. DiTullio’s house was also part of a 

subdivision and he purchased the house in the same type of situation. He referred on the plan to 

Page 12 of 79



Special Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

August 1, 2017 

 

Page 7 of 7 

where Mr. DiTullio’s has occupied a portion of his property. With reference to snow, the only 

snow left is what the sidewalk plow leaves behind and because of the way the terrain is, makes it 

difficult to plow up and hence the snow gets pushed downhill.  

 

Chair Stout asked Mr. Wilson whether there was a steep grade on this road. Mr. Wilson stated it 

was an average slope. The Chair asked whether anything different could be done with the snow, 

Mr. Wilson stated if there was he would. 

 

With no further comments, the Chair closed the public hearing. 

 

C.   Board Discussion and Action  

Ms. Landry asked who owned lot behind this lot, which is referred to as “unknown owner”. Staff 

wasn’t sure. The Chair stated because the applicant is present today, it is likely the abutters were 

notified as well. Staff agreed. 

 

The Chair felt this subdivision should be allowed but wasn’t sure how the extended driveway 

was going to be located. He asked how far back this driveway was going to be located from the 

boundary line. Mr. Lamb stated according to the zoning code there is a three foot minimum 

setback requirement. He added there will be a transition that would need to take place in a 

reasonable way and added the City Engineer would approve this unless it exceeded three feet, at 

which time it will come back before the Board. 

 

A motion was made by Martha Landry that the Planning Board approve S-03-17, 2 lot 

subdivision with the following conditions: Approve S-03-17, as shown on the plan identified as 

“2 Lot Subdivision Plan, 152-04-003-0000, 72 Old Walpole Road, Keene NH 03431”, prepared 

by Wendy S. Pelletier. LLS of Cardinal Surveying and Land Planning, at a scale of 1” = 20’, 

dated June 16, 2017 with the following conditions: 

 

1. Owner’s signature on plan prior to approval. 

 

The motion was seconded by Pamela Russell Slack and was unanimously approved. 

 

On a unanimous vote, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 pm. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Krishni Pahl 

Minute Taker 

 

Reviewed by: Rhett Lamb, Planning Director 

Edits by: Lee Langella 

 

 

Page 13 of 79



THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

Page 14 of 79



STAFF REPORT 

Page 1 of 2 

SPR-09-17 SITE PLAN REVIEW – 38 Roxbury Street, MoCo Arts Building 

Request: 

MoCo Arts is proposing to construct a 16,533 SF performing arts center on their 0.79 acre parcel located 
at 38 Roxbury Street in Keene, NH.  This parcel is in the Central Business zoning district, TMP # 017-07-
016.  The two-story building will contain a 200-seat black box theatre, three studios, administrative 
offices, changing rooms, restrooms and storage areas.   

Background: 

This project received a Conditional Site Plan Approval at the City of Keene’s July 25, 2016, Planning 
Board meeting. Subsequently, a Demolition Permit was issued by the Code Enforcement Department on 
October 10, 2017; the YMCA building has been removed and the site prepared for new construction. 
However, per Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulation 11.a.’s 180-day deadline for the 
completion of conditions, the original site plan approval expired on January 25, 2017; hence the new 
application, staff report and presentation.  

With regard to the former YMCA building’s status as a Primary Resource in Keene’s Historic District, a 
Certificate of Appropriateness was issued for the project on May 18, 2016 by the Historic District 
Commission. Per Section Planning Board Site Plan and Development Regulation III.B.4., this review and 
approval supersedes the Planning Board’s Development Standard 19, Architectural and Visual 
Appearance.  

Completeness: 

A revised set of project plans were submitted on August 8, 2017 including: 
1) “Proposed New Facility for MOCO ARTS, 38-42 Roxbury Street, Keene, NH 03431” prepared

by Brickstone Land Use Consultants at a scale of 1” = 20’on June 17, 2016 and last revised on 
March 8, 2017 incorporating a revised Drainage Plan and revised Utility Plan.  

2) Elevations identified as “MoCo Arts, Building Elevations” prepared by KCS Architects at a scale
of 3/16” = 1’ on February 10, 2017, and 

3) A revised Drainage Report, dated March 9, 2017.

The applicant has not requested additional site-specific exemptions. Staff recommends that the Planning 
Board accept the application as “complete.”  

Departmental Comments: 

Due to the previous approval and minimal subsequent site plan change listed below, no additional 
comments were solicited or received by other Departments with the exception of the continuing 
negotiations regarding an agreement between the applicant and the City specifying the details, 
construction timing and future maintenance responsibilities of a relocated stairway access to the second 
floor municipal parking garage. 

Application Analysis: 

The following is a review of the Board’s relevant standards to only the aspects or items that have changed 
since the project’s previous approval: 

1. Drainage:
A. The permeable pavers are replaced with stamped concrete at the entry courtyard with appropriate,

revised grading. 
B. Catch Basin 7 was relocated as shown on the revised grading plan sheet C-103 and the utility plan

sheet C-104.  
Page 15 of 79



STAFF REPORT 

Page 2 of 2 

C. Per the revised Drainage Report and Drainage Plan noted earlier, these changes were deemed 
acceptable and appropriate by staff. This standard has been met. 

8. Screening:  The screened dumpster enclosure’s height is increased to 8-feet and enlarged to add a
storage shed. This standard has been met.

10. Lighting:
A. The initial condition requiring additional lighting at the rear northwest corner of the building was

remedied per a revised lighting plan submitted on August 4, 2016. 
B. One pole light was removed at the loading dock area, and three additional wall mounted lights

were added per the revisions submitted April 4, 2017. 
C. This standard has been met.

13. Comprehensive Access Management:
A. The handicapped-accessible parking space and accessible route is relocated to the east side of the

building with revised grading. Correspondingly, the stop sign location at Roxbury Street is 
shifted. 

B. The brick benches are removed from the entry courtyard area. 
C. The vertical granite curb is changed to a sloped granite curb along the front planter and courtyard 

area. 
D. The material and design of the courtyard retaining wall is changed from brick to a concrete base 

with a top rail. The top rail is of the same material and design as the rail surrounding the 
landscaped area adjacent to the courtyard.   

E. The stairs at the parking garage are shifted along with a re-aligning of the associated striping of 
the crosswalk. 

F. This standard has been met. 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

If the Board is inclined to approve this application, the following motion is recommended: 

Approve SPR-09-17, as shown on the plan set entitled “Proposed New Facility for MOCO ARTS, 
38-42 Roxbury Street, Keene, NH 03431” prepared by Brickstone Land Use Consultants at a scale 
of 1” = 20’on June 17, 2016 and last revised on March 8, 2017 along with elevations identified as 
“MoCo Arts, Building Elevations” prepared by KCS Architects at a scale of 3/16” = 1’ on 
February 10, 2017 with the following conditions prior to signature by Planning Board Chair: 

A. Prior to signature, submittal of an agreement specifying the details, construction timing 
and future maintenance responsibilities of a relocated stairway access to the second floor 
municipal parking garage. 

B. Submittal of security for landscaping, erosion control measures and a geospatially-
referenced, “as-built” site plan in a form and amount acceptable to the Planning Director 
and City Engineer. 

C. Owner’s signature on plan. 

Page 16 of 79



CITY OF KEENE I PLANNING BOARD 
SITE PLAN REVIEW I ~IODIFICATION APPLICATION 

Date Received/Date of Subnnssion: 

t
, ~1\ ti.VG u S 2017 Iii \ 
J~ LJ 

.' ~\I . , · ----
L-'"' ..... ...-.. --- ___ r.,....,.• ..... - _........ .. ..._ ___ ... ___ _ 

.=::....:.iu..u:~a:.:...r~~&~:f~r~e.e=-.:.-f~~==<1 Date ofpre-application IT).eeting: 
Tax Map Parcel numb r(s) 

_o_ J.._ L -12 ~ -~ _L ~ £L ..c.. .A r.i. 
.":., .. 

Project 
Address: 

.3S Rotbury ~+ 

Acreage/S.F. I -rl 

of Parcel: .79-+ - 1.;iilJ. I-

Zoning 
District: 

~e.11.frtt/ -:$US /n~.SS 

Date Application is Complete: 

P~l~g I)ep~~nt File#: S Pe-oq -\./ 

Address: 

Telephone\ Email: 351 # 2100 (VY\eS~("~ 

Name: e 
Address: 

Telephone\ Email: 

Modifications: Is this a modification to a previously-a 

o3</31 

Date: 

For those sections of the application that are not affected by the proposed modification to the previously approved site 
lan. you are encouraged to re uest exem tions in lieu of submittincr re uired documents. 

Descriptive Narrative Including 

a Type of development ~Sedimentation Control ii:":! Scope/scale of development 

Qi Proposed uses 12!1 Vegetation Qif Parcel size 

S Location of access points tJ/lr 0 Debris management i( Proposed stonnwater, drainage & erosion plan 

if Any other descri tive information ll/'4- 0 Dis osal ro osals for boulders, stum s & debris 

A complete application must include the following . . .; . 

1il Two (2) copies of completed appl ication forms signed & dated k'J1 Plans stamped/signed by reg. professional 

~ Two (2) copies of descriptive narrative Qi2 Two C!) copies on 11" x 17" 

ill Notarized list of all owners of property within 200' D Three (3) copies of all technical reports 

~ Two (2) sets of mailing labels. per abutter 0 Two (2) color architectural elevations on 11 " x 17" 

@' 'Sl~1 N··?copies on '·D" size paper of plans (24" x 36") 0 A check to cover the costs of legal notice to advertise 

0 Three (3 ) co ies of "D" size architectural elevations (24" x 36") the public hearin . mailing notices out to abutters 

6.16.2017 

Page 17 of 79



Site Plan Application Narrative 
MoCo Arts 

38 Roxbury Street 
Keene, NH 

August 08, 2017 

This application is a re-submittal of a site plan previously approved as SPR-07- 16 
with minor modifications approved in April 2017. The site plan was inadvertently 
allowed to expire prior to signature. MoCo Arts is requesting re-approval of the same 
modified site as previously approved. 

MoCo Aiis is proposing to construct a new 16,533 sf +/- performing arts center at 
the site of the former Keene YMCA at 38 Roxbury Street. The property is a 0.79 acre 
tract located in the Central Business District and in the Downtown Historic District. The 
site was previously occupied by an empty 48,540 sf+/- building, a portion of which had 
been deemed a Primary Resource in the Downtown Historic District. A Certificate of 
Appropriateness was approved by the Historic District Commission on May 18, 2016 to 
allow removal of the existing building. 

The new two story building will house a 200 seat black box theatre, three studios, 
administrative offices, changing rooms, restrooms and storage areas. Onsite parking for 
23 cars will be provided. A designated pickup/drop off lane is provided on the west side 
of the building with onsite queuing for up to 20 cars provided. Site lighting will consist of 
full cutoff LED fixtures on poles at the rear parking area and wall mounted over the 
pedestrian walkways around the building. LED bollards will be utilized adjacent to the 
front courtyard and entry area. 

LID measures incorporated into this site plan include a new stormwater 
infiltration system below the parking spaces and circulation lanes on three sides of the 
building. The storm water infiltration system takes advantage of the sandy soils on the site 
and reduces stormwater runoff from entering the city storm drains at Roxbury Street. 

Page 18 of 79



Site Plan Applicaticn Narrative 
MoCo Arts 

38 Roxbury Street 
Keene, NH 

August 08, 2017 

Development Standards 

1. Drainage - Stormwater runoff from this site will be reduced through the use of 
an onsite infiltration system. On site drainage will be collected in catch basins 
and infiltrated through a perforated pipe system into the existing sandy soils 
below the parking and circulation areas. Hooded outlet pipes and sumps will be 
used in each catch basin to remove sediments and contaminants prior to 
infiltration. The infiltration system is designed for a 50 year design stonn. 
Runoff exceeding the capacity of the system will discharge to the existing 48" 
city storm drain which passes through the west of the site to Roxbury Street. 
The net result is a decrease in storm water runoff leaving the site. See attached 
drainage letter from Thayer Fellows, PE. 

2. Sediment/Erosion Control - Silt fence will be erected around the perimeter of 
the areas to be disturbed during construction. Silt Soxx and/or filter fabric will 
be installed on existing and newly constructed catch basins to prevent sediment 
from entering the stonnwater infiltration system. All erosion control measures 
will remain in place until the site has been vegetated and stabilized. 

3. Hillside Protection - NIA 

4. Snow Storage and Removal - Snow storage areas are identified on the site 
plan. Excess snow will be removed from the site. 

5. Flooding - This site does not lie within the 100 year floodplain. 

6. Landscaping- New landscaping is proposed adjacent to the entry courtyard and 
along the Roxbury Street frontage, and adjacent to the parking spaces at the rear 
of the building. Plantings will include 2 Chanticleer Pears of 3" caliper; a Pinky 
Winky Hydrangea tree; and a variety of shrubs and perennials. New shrubs will 
include 7 Lil Kim white Hibiscus, 7 Lil Kim red Hibiscus, 7 Gold Star Juniper, 
34 Bar Harbor Juniper, and 3 Anthony Waterer Spirea. Perennials include 3 
Echinacea, 3 Daylily, and 8 Heuchera. Outdoor areas for use by students and 
employees will be loamed and seeded. 

7. Noise - This proposal will comply with the Keene Noise Ordinance. m rf! fTJ ~ ~?!'---:~ 1 .. ;\'l 
ri} l!; L!D LL L i.:! L::: · : tl 
~'\ ! ". 

LJLJ AUG 0 8 2017 lliJl 

s§~~:~:Q:-~:--J 
Page 19 of 79



8. Screening - The dumpster enclosure at the rear of the site will be enclosed 
with 8 foot high metal panels matching the wall panels at the rear of the 
building. Roof mounted HV AC units will be installed at the rear of the building 
and screened with parapet walls. They will not be visible from Roxbury Street. 

9. Air Quality- NIA 

10. Lighting - Onsite lighting will be provided using LED full cutoff fixtures. 
There will be two 15 foot high pole lights at the rear parking area, 11 bollards 
along the front courtyard area, 8 wall mounted lights along the east, north and 
west sides of the building and 3 ceiling mounted lights on the east side of the 
building. Average light levels will be between 1.15 and 1.27 footcandles with a 
uniformity ratio between 2.5 and 3.8:1. The light poles and bollards will be on 
timers and be shut off at lOPM. Wall mounted lights will remain on for security. 
Reduced light levels drop to an average between 0.31 and 1.14 footcandles. This 
is consistent with the lighting standards for a low activity area. 

11. Sewer and Water- Sewer and water services exist on Roxbury Street at the 
site and are adequate for the proposed use. New water service lines will be 
installed to provide both domestic water and fire sprinkler protection. A new 4" 
sewer line will also be installed. 

12. Traffic - A Memorandum on trip generation and traffic impacts for this project 
was prepared by Stephen G. Pemaw & Company. The proposed MoCo Arts 
facility will operate from 9AM- 9PM on Mondays and Thursdays; lOAM -
9PM on Tuesdays and Wednesdays; Noon to 6:30PM on Fridays; and 9AM -
3PM on Saturdays. They will generate approximately 129 vehicle trips during 
the PM peak hour. This is slightly less than the former YMCA traffic, which 
generated approximately 133 vehicle trips during the PM peak hour. The net 
impact to traffic on Roxbury Street is negligible. 

Onsite pick up and drop off for students is provided with queuing for up to 
20 cars. This will greatly reduce the pedestrian crossings at Roxbury Street from 
the previous use and improve public safety at this location. 

13. Comprehensive Access Management- The City Express bus route includes a 
stop at the senior housing adjacent to this site. The bus operates Monday 
through Friday from 8AM to 5PM. A city sidewalk exists along the frontage of 
this property at Roxbury Street. On site sidewalks will be constructed encircling 
the building and will connect to the existing city sidewalk and to the city 
parking garage adjacent to the site. A bike rack will be installed on site to the 
west side of the building adjacent to the main entrance. 

14. Hazardous and Toxic Materials - The property owner has no knowledge of 
existing contamination on the property. 

2 
Page 20 of 79



15. Filling/Excavation - Fill and excavation nonnal to the construction of a new 
building is proposed. Truck routes to the site will be Route l2A to Court Street 
to Main Street to Roxbury Street and/or Rt. 12 to Main Street to Roxbury Street. 

16. Wetlands - No wetlands exist at the site. 

17. Surface Waters - None 

18. Stump Dumps - None 

19. Architecture and Visual Appearance - The architecture of the new building 
was approved by the Historic District Commission on May 18, 2016 and issued a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for the Historic District. A copy is attached. 

South Primary Fac;ade: 

We have created a pedestrian friendly approach to the building by way of an entry court 
on the west side of the lot, facing Roxbury Street and Central Square. This entry court is 
similar in scale to the set back courtyard entry at the Abner Sanger building next door, 
and is consistent with the existing pattern of construction on the street. The black box 
theater is a windowless volume, which we have set back from the street behind a glass 
lobby. The lobby has a glass storefront entrance, similar in scale and height to other 
storefronts in the district, and then a translucent insulated wall above the storefront. This 
translucent wall has a grid pattern which breaks down its scale in a way that respects the 
surrounding architectural scale and fabric of building materials. The height of the lobby 
wall is 28 feet high. The height of the black box walls behind it is 38' high. This is more 
consistent with a 3 story building in height, and is due to the technical and rigging 
requirements within the black box theater itself. This height works well on that block 
when one considers the buildings across the street that are a bit lower than the taller 
Abner Sanger building next door, and when one also considers the more residential 
buildings to the east side of this lot. Please take a look at the street views provided. 

We have located the dance studios at the street line, as these rooms want windows and 
light, and this is a good place to pick up on the rhythm of fenestration that exists on the 
historic streetscape. This front part of the building, up at the street, is two stories tall with 
an overall height of 34 feet. It is all red brick, consistent with the building materials in 
the district. The red brick would be a brick veneer wall type construction, with coursing 
and details consistent with the how the wall is actually constructed, as it was in the older 
buildings of the district as well. The brick detailing should be consistent with how it is 
built, which is what is proposed. If you look at the street views, you will see that this 
fac;ade is also of a proportion and scale consistent with other buildings in the historic 
district. We have designed a comer storefront window facing Central Square at the west 
side of the studio rooms. This window picks up on the scale of the comer storefront 
window in the adjacent Abner Sanger building. After this corner window, the 
fenestration recedes in width toward the east side of the lot to pick up on the residential 

3 Page 21 of 79



scale of the fenestration on the east side of the building, toward the houses of Roxbury 
Street. 

Outside of the young arts studio, and in front of the lobby, is a landscaped garden area 
with wrought iron style fencing, in which the children can partake of outdoor activities 
during camp programs. We have designed the fencing to be a contemporary version of 
New England wrought iron style fencing, not unlike the fencing material down the street 
at the NGM gardens on West Street, just shorter, but also with plantings. The fencing 
will be a lighter aluminum color, and also incorporate bollard lighting to illuminate the 
approach to the building. 

West F ayade: 

This fayade does not face the street and is not entirely visible from the street. The front 
part of the fa<,;ade would be visible as one approaches from Central Square. This fac;ade 
is designed to be red brick with punched windows from the front south fayade turning the 
comer onto this west fac;ade. There is also a MoCo sign located on this fac;ade, and a 
storefront entrance both to the Young Arts Studio and to the entry lobby. The garden 
area outside of the Young Arts Studio would also be visible, as well as the children 
playing within it. 

The back of the west fa9ade is the red brick wall of the Black Box Theater. It is not 
visible from the street, and does not include any fenestration. It has wall mounted lights 
and a back service door to the black box theater. 

North Fac;ade: 

This is the back fac;ade of the building. It is not visible from a public way. It is a 
combination of red brick, split face masonry units, and corrugated metal panels, as noted 
in the drawings. It has a loading dock, a rear service door and windows to the faculty 
spaces at the second level. 

East F ac;ade: 

This facrade does not face the street and is not entirely visible from the street. This east 
fac;ade is also primarily red brick. There is no fenestration proposed for the front portion 
of this wall, as these are the mirrored walls of the dance studios on the interior. There is 
signage, lighting, and also a tree proposed at the front corner of the east fa9ade. There is 
also more of the translucent insulated Kalwall proposed for the back studio at the second 
floor level, and then a mix of storefront windows and split-faced masonry units toward 
the rear, outside of the Green Room, and red aluminum wall panel at the very back at the 
second floor level. 

In Conclusion, MoCo has focused its budgetary efforts on the primary south fac;ade and 
entrance of the building. This is the fa9ade that will be visible from the street, and the 
fa9ade that draws the public into the theater, and vice versa. It is a classic red brick 

4 
Page 22 of 79



fa9ade with punched windows in the scale and proportion of its historic neighbors. The 
design is a contemporary complement to the Historic District. It respects the materials 
and proportions of the district without mimicking them. It will bring art and movement 
to this area still vacant from the loss of the YMCA, while it is also a building that will be 
considered to be a historic example of our period in the years that come. 

5 
Page 23 of 79



Page 24 of 79



Page 25 of 79



Page 26 of 79



Page 27 of 79

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box



Page 28 of 79

Eli-1
Text Box

Eli-1
Text Box



Page 29 of 79



Page 30 of 79



Page 31 of 79



Page 32 of 79



Page 33 of 79



THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

Page 34 of 79



From: Huseyin Sevincgil
To: Michele Chalice
Cc: Tom Frawley; Monticup, Heather (hmonticup@gpinet.com); Frank C. Monteiro; Garrett Piccirillo
Subject: 219 West Street Keene
Date: Tuesday, August 08, 2017 11:59:39 AM

Michele
 
On behalf of our client, Summit Distributing, we hereby respectfully request a continuance for the
 Planning Board public hearing to be held on August 28, 2017.  This request is being made to allow us
 additional time to prepare the Traffic Study requested by the City/Planning Board.  We should be
 able to submit the traffic study and revised plans for the following meeting in September. 
 
Please let me know when you would need the materials submitted for the September
 meeting. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation on this matter. 
 
 

Hüseyin Sevinçgil, P.E.| Project Manager | hs@mhfdesign.com
MHF Design Consultants, Inc.
44 Stiles Road, Suite One | Salem, NH 03079
p: 603-893-0720 | f: 603-893-0733 | www.mhfdesign.com

 
 

Page 35 of 79

mailto:hs@mhfdesign.com
mailto:mchalice@ci.keene.nh.us
mailto:tomf@sumd.com
mailto:hmonticup@gpinet.com
mailto:fcm@mhfdesign.com
mailto:gmp@mhfdesign.com
mailto:hs@mhfdesign.com
file:///dsa.ENG/Documents/MHF/www.mhfdesign.com


THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

Page 36 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Subdivisions\S-04-17 62 Nims Rd\S-04-17 Staff Report_II__.doc         

Page 1 of 3 

S-04-17 – 62 NIMS ROAD SUBDIVISION  

 

Request: 

Applicant Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owners John & Frances 

Bolles, requests a Conditional Use Permit to subdivide property located at 62 Nims Road into a 3-lot 

Conservation Residential Development with 11.74 acres placed into open space. A waiver is requested 

from Section VI.9.b of the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations to allow each lot to be 

accessed from Nims Road.  The existing site is 19.48 acres in size and located in the Rural Zoning 

District (TMP# 903-19-015). 

 

Background: 

At the August 2, 2017 Special Meeting of the Planning Board, the Applicant proposed to subdivide the 

19.48-acre lot at 62 Nims Road into three residential building lots. The parcel is currently located on the 

east side of Nims Road, and slopes east towards Otter Brook Dam.  There is an existing residential 

structure located on the property as well as a shed, barn, and small sugar house.   

 

After calculating for the presence of precautionary and prohibitive slopes, the proposed northern-most lot 

of 5.54-acres would have had only 2.68-acres of land to attribute towards minimum lot size, where the 

Rural Zone requires a minimum lot size of 5 acres. To allow for this subdivision, the Applicant had been 

seeking a waiver from Section III.B.6 Hillside Protection of the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision 

Regulations, which states “Except for Conservation Residential Development Subdivisions, for all 

proposed subdivisions of parcels greater than fifteen (15) acres in size, land areas meeting the definition 

of a prohibitive slope shall be excluded in the calculation of minimum lot size for each new lot…fifty (50) 

percent of land areas meeting the definition of a precautionary slope shall be excluded in the calculation 

of minimum lot size for each new lot.”   

 

At the August 2
nd

 meeting, the Board expressed hesitation towards granting the waiver and continued the 

public hearing to the August 28, 2017 meeting to allow the Applicant time to consider a Conservation 

Residential Development or an alternate proposal that would not require a waiver from the Section 

III.B.6.   

 

The Applicant has submitted a revised subdivision plan for this site that incorporates a Conservation 

Residential Development (CRD). The primary objectives of a CRD are to permit reduced lot sizes and 

flexible dimensional building setback requirements in exchange for permanently preserving open space, 

and to preserve and protect environmentally sensitive site characteristics (e.g. wetlands, steep slopes, 

woodlands, prime soils, etc.), historic features (e.g. stonewalls, cellarholes), open space areas, and 

visually prominent features.   

 

Per the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations, a CRD shall be submitted to the Planning 

Board as a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), which the Applicant has submitted. Section VI of these 

Regulations outline specific criteria for how CRDs shall be designed and reviewed by the Planning Board.  

 

The analysis below reviews the CRD CUP Criteria as well as relevant Development Standards.  

 

Completeness: 

Staff recommends that the Planning Board accept the application as “complete.”  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Subdivisions\S-04-17 62 Nims Rd\S-04-17 Staff Report_II__.doc         

Page 2 of 3 

Application Analysis:  

 

Identification of Open Space Value and Designation of Open Space: 

In a CRD, a minimum of 50% of the parcel needs to be restricted in perpetuity as Open Space by an 

appropriate legal instrument that would be binding upon the developer, its successors and assigns. The 

Applicant has designated 11.74 acres as Open Space, which constitutes 60% of the existing parcel.   

 

Delineation of lands to be used to meet the Open Space requirements shall be based on an analysis and 

prioritization of primary and secondary conservation values identified on the tract.  The Applicant has 

identified the primary conservation values on the Subdivision Plan. These include wetlands and steep 

slopes.   

 

Approximately 1.7-acres of the wetlands on the property are located on the south-east portion of the 

existing lot. A smaller area of wetlands is located along the northern edge of the existing parcel. The 

Applicant has depicted the delineated wetlands areas as well as the 75’ Surface Water Protection Buffer 

on the proposed Subdivision Plan.  The wetland delineation was completed on April 11, 2017 by a NH 

Certified Wetland Scientist.  

 

The Applicant has identified the presence of steep slopes on the subdivision plan.  The Applicant notes 

that 20% of the existing 19.48-acre lot is precautionary slopes and 8.5% are prohibitive slopes. 

Precautionary slopes are those of 15% - 25% slope where any land area is shown to have an elevation 

gain of 10-feet over a horizontal distance between 66- and 40- feet. Prohibitive slopes are those of >25% 

slope where any land area is shown to have an elevation gain of greater than 10-feet over a horizontal 

distance of 40-feet or less. 

 

The Applicant also identified secondary conservation values including soil units and types, woodlands, 

and stonewalls.  

 

The proposed location of the designated Open Space, is a contiguous area of 11.74 acres at the rear of the 

existing lot. This area includes the majority of the primary and secondary conservation values on the site.   

 

Location of Structures:  

The Regulations intend for structures in a CRD to be sited so that they preserve the conservation values 

within the natural landscape to the greatest extent possible.  The Applicant proposes three building lots, 

all of which have frontage on Nims Rd.  The proposed northern most building lot will be 3.077 acres and 

is currently undeveloped, with the exception of a small sugar house. The middle lot will be 2.75 acres and 

is the site of the existing residence. The southern lot will be 1.92 acres and has an existing shed and barn 

located on it.   

 

Although no new development is proposed at this time, the Applicant has drawn proposed building 

envelopes, leach fields, and wellhead areas on the subdivision plan to demonstrate the potential for each 

lot to be developed without impacting primary or secondary conservation values and without encroaching 

into the required setbacks.   

 

Alignment of Streets and Trails:  

The Applicant is not proposing any streets or recreation areas / trails in the Open Space area.  

 

Section VI.9.b of the Planning Board Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations requires that “all structures 

within a Conservation Residential Development shall be accessed from interior streets, rather than from 

roads bordering the tract.” It goes on to state, “this requirement may be waived by the Planning Board in 

accordance with Paragraph 14 Waiver of Requirements.”  

Page 38 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Subdivisions\S-04-17 62 Nims Rd\S-04-17 Staff Report_II__.doc         

Page 3 of 3 

 

As this CRD proposal does not involve the construction of a new roadway, the Applicant is seeking a 

waiver from this requirement in order to locate primary access to the three proposed building lots from 

Nims Road, which borders the tract.    

 

In granting a waiver request from this section of the Regulations, the Board shall find that all of the 

following four conditions apply:  

a) That granting the waiver will not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the CRD Ordinance;  

b) That granting the waiver will better protect the conservation values identified in the CRD 

Design Process.  

c) That granting the waiver will not diminish the property values of abutting properties. 

d) That granting the waiver will be to the benefit of the public interest.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

 

Staff will provide a recommendation at the Planning Board meeting on August 28, 2017.  

Page 39 of 79



Page 40 of 79



Page 41 of 79



Page 42 of 79



Page 43 of 79



Page 44 of 79



Page 45 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

S-05-17  2-Lot Subdivision –618 Court St. 
  
Request: 

Wendy S. Pelletier, LLS, on behalf of owner Mark Harper proposes a 2-lot subdivision.  This 
proposal would subdivide an existing, 0.57 acre lot (TMP# 118-02-01-0000) into one 12,596 SF 
lot and one 12,257 SF lot.  The parcel is located in the Low Density Zoning District just north of 
Cheshire Medical Center.   
 

Background: 

As shown in the aerial photo above, the existing parcel is long and narrow lot with frontage on 
both Court and Riverview Streets. Currently two driveways are present; a paved driveway on 
Court Street and a gravel driveway, both providing access to the existing, single-family 
residence. The Engineering Department has deemed that both of the existing driveways are legal. 
The parcel is served by City water and sewer. No wetlands, surface waters or steep slopes are 
present. The proposed, new parcel will need access onto Riverview Street.  There is ample 
frontage area along the proposed parcel to create this new access which could be staggered from 
the existing driveways on the south side of Riverview Street.  

  

 

Figure 1: 618 Court St. – Existing Property Parcel 

Page 46 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

Completeness: 

The Applicant has supplied the following drawing: “2-Lot Subdivision, 118-02-010-000, 618 
Court Street, Keene, NH 03431”, 1” = 20’, dated July 21, 2017. 
In addition, the Applicant has requested site-specific exemptions from the following plan 
requirements, explicitly for site features that are not present on the site (i.e. stonewalls, cellar 
holes, etc.).  These exemptions are: 
 

1. Proposed Conditions Plan – proposed contours at minimum intervals of five feet, and the 
location of proposed light fixtures.   

 
2. The entire Grading Plan 

 
3. The entire Landscaping Plan 

 
4. The entire Lighting Plan 

 
5. Technical Reports – drainage report, traffic report, and documentation of all test pits. 

 
After reviewing the requested exemptions, staff recommends that the Board grant all exemptions 
and open the public hearing for S-05-17.  As a reminder, the Board has 65 days to make a 
decision on an application once the Public Hearing has been opened.    
 

Departmental Comments: 

Engineering: Survey Plan –  

1. Differentiate between existing and proposed lot lines.  

2. Confirm that all lines and symbology used in the drawings is defined in the legend (For 
example, water line, co, etc.).  

Police: Reviewed with no comment. 

Fire:  No issues 

Code: The side setback bordering Riverview Street should be 20’, see Section 102-826(c). 

“Side yards. In the residential districts, the street side setback of a corner lot shall be 
measured from the property line adjacent to the street, and shall be ten feet greater 
than the normal side setback requirements specified in section 102-791. …” 

  

Page 47 of 79

https://library.municode.com/nh/keene/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH102ZO_ARTVSURE_DIV1GE_S102-791BAZODIRE


STAFF REPORT 
 

Application Analysis: 

This application proposes no development and is served by City water and sewer. The resulting 
subdivided parcel is, within existing regulations, developable. However, given the narrowness of 
the proposed new parcel and Sec. 102-794.(5): 

 “Parking areas not included in article VI, division 4, shall have the parking surface 
located to the rear of the front setback or building line and the surface shall be at least 
three feet from the side property line.”  

The Board may wish to request that the applicant demonstrate potential layout options that meet 
the necessary requirements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

If the Board is inclined to approve the Application, the following motion is recommended: 
 

Approve S-05-17, as shown on the plan identified as “2-Lot Subdivision, 118-02-010-000, 618 
Court Street, Keene, NH 03431”, dated July 21, 2017, received July 20, 2017 prepared by 
Wendy S. Pelletier. LLS, at a scale of 1” = 20’, with the following conditions: 
 
1. Submit a revised subdivision plan with the following necessary changes: 
 

a. The correct side setback for the existing, corner lot. 
b. Differentiation between existing and proposed lot lines. 
c. A revised legend that contains all lines and symbology used in the drawing. 

 
2. Owner’s signature on plan prior to approval. 

Page 48 of 79



K:\ENGNRNG\Site Plan Review\618 Court Street\Comments Memo_YD_2017 0803.docx 

CITY OF KEENE 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

Public Works Department 

 

 

Date:  August 4, 2017 

 

To:  Michelle Chalice, Planner 

 

Through: Donald R. Lussier, P.E., City Engineer 

 

From:  Yelma Desseta, Civil Engineer 

 

Subject: 618 Court Street(S-05-17)  

 

 

Background: 

 

The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division received the following documents in our 

office on August 3, 2017 for review and comments. 

 

 Survey Plan entitled “2 Lot Subdivision” prepared by Cardinal Surveying and Land 

Planning, dated July 21, 2017. 

 

The Engineering Division reviewed the above documents and made comments in conformance 

with standard engineering practice and compliance with City of Keene Subdivision Rules and 

Regulations (Sec. 70-121. Lot monuments and Sec. 102 -791 Basic Zone Dimension 

Requirement).  

 

Survey Plan: 

 

1. Please differentiate between existing and proposed lot lines. 

2. Confirm that all lines and symbology used in the drawings is defined in the legend (For 

example, water line, co, etc.).  

3. In accordance with Sec. 70-135 of the City Code, a separate driveway permit is not 

required if the proposed driveway is approved as part of a subdivision plan.  We 

recommend the Applicant include the proposed driveway for the new lot as part of this 

plan rather than go through a separate review process at a later date. 

 

 

Page 49 of 79



i 

CITY OF KEENE I PLANNING BOARD 
SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 

Project Name 
2 LOT SlJBDlVISION 

Date Received/Date of Submission: 

~~~..,.....~~-~~=====9! Date of pre-application meeting: 
Tax Map Parcel number(s) 
118 - 02 - 010 .0000 

~ 
:..-~::;;::-~·:,~.;;::.:::::::::;::.~:::.J 

Date Application is Complete: 

Project 
Address: 618 COURT STREET 

Acreage/S.F. 
of Parcel: .57 AC _/ 24.853 SI 

Planning Department Flle #: · 

i Name: MARK HARPER 

Address: 337 HARTSVILLE LANE, WEBSTER, NY 14580 

Tel~Qhone/E-mail: mark.harper@mlharperco.com 
585-73 8-0684 

Signature: ~4 ~ ~ /-------
N . \VENDY PELLETIER, CARDI~AL SURVEYING AND LAND 

arne. PLAN~I1\G 

1 Zoning Address:463 WASHINGTO~ STREET, KEENE, NH 0343! 

District: LOW DENSITY -r 1 h tE .1.wENDY@CARDINAI-SURVEYrNa.NET 
e ep one .-mal '603 499-6151 0., 

c. ~----~~-----------------------------------------~ 
~ Signature: _.--U ,, __ z, '--< .. c:l .. L 

.Descriptive Narrative Including 
Sedimentation Control cope/scale of development 

ri Proposed uses u/vegetation ctParcel size 

:3' Location of access points rJ Debris management i Proposed storm>vater, drainage & erosion plan 

information & debris 

A cmnplete application must include the following 

Two (2) copies of completed application forms signed & dated 

~Two (2) copies of descriptive narrative 

t:i"Notarized list of all o~ners of property within 200' 

~Two (2) sets of mailing labels, per abutter 

~Seven 

~ Jlans stamped/signed by reg. professional 

rS Jwo (2) copies on 11 '' x 17" 

u/ Tyree (3) copies of all technical reports 

Ci"A check to cover the costs of legal notice to adYertise 

the notices out to abutters 

K:\Administration - Planning Depar1ment\FORMS\Subdivisbn\Subdivision Application.docx 6.16.2017 

\ 

Page 50 of 79



.N 

s 463K::~se~i~~t~~:;~eet Up.U~ ~JUL ;0 2017 b ~~/' 
(603) 209-1989 

www.caT d·inalsurveying.net C" c- j'---J 
"Know Your Boundaries" 8~, __ .;::>_-_0_v ·-~_j __ 

~--~--~ 

July 20,2017 

618 Court St. 
2 Lot Subdivision 

Project Narrative 

Map 118-02-01-0000 is a 0.57 acre lot on the west side of Court Street on the corner of Riverview St. just north 
of the hospital. There is a single family dwelling on the lot accessed from a driveway onto Court Street. 

The lot is in the low-density district. The neighborhood is comprised of modest single-family homes on 10,000+· 
sJ.lots. 

This is a proposed residential 2 lot subdivision. The existing dwelling 12,596 s.f. lot with frontage on Court 
Street. The second lot will be lot of 12,257 s.f. with frontage on Riverview Street. 
There are not wetlands, surface water or steep slopes on the lot. 

The existing dwelling is connected to City sewer and water. A new dwelling will be connected to City utilities as 
well. The elevation of the house is such that it should not need a sewer pump. 

There is no building proposed at this time. The requirements for drainage, erosion control, stump and debris 
management is noted in the general notes and will be addressed at the time building permits are applied for. 

Page 51 of 79



A ,,pJ ic:llll 1\ i,l,iil'<ltll S1a tT 
Required Items for Submittal N. A \'l.:rilil'~ f~~tjliL' :-h R~·...:omrnend~ 

Prt.''L'IK'&: I · :\l?lllption I· '\t:mpltlltl 

Soils report prepared by a licensed NH engineer 0 Q 

Documentation or all test pits a 0 
Bedrock within 48" of ground level 

Poorly drained soils 0 (J 

Highly erosive soils 0 0 0 ·------·-
ADDITIONAL TECHNICAL REPORTS (Section IV.D.l.g) 

The Planning Board may request additional technical studies from the Applicant; including, but not limited 
to, Natural Heritage Documentation, Historic Evaluation, Screening Analysis, detailed Architectural Study. 

'Bl.Y ON 

The Planning Board Development Standards are to be met for all applications. Please review the 
development standards and provide a brief narrative description for how your application addresses each 
and/or indicate where on the plan or in the application proof of compliance can be found. Applicants can 
either supply the information in the space provided, or attach a brief narrative (use of a separate sheet is 
recommended). 

1) Drainage: MINOR 2 LOT SUBDNISION, NO BUILDING IS PROPOSED AT THIS TIME. 

2) Sedimentation & Erosion Control: 

3) Hillside Protection: 

4) Snow Storage & Removal: 

5) Flooding: 

6) Landscaping: 

7) Noise: 

8) Screening: 

K:\Administration - Planning DepartmentiFORMS\Subdivision\Subdivision Application.docx 6.16.2017 

Page 52 of 79



I 9) Air Quality: :'-J/A 
' 

~---------------------------------------------------------------------~ 

~~ ::~;; W~er ~OTE J3-0N?illf---·----------·--~--··-~-~------------------d 
I ~ 
~Traffic: 1\iiA ---~ 

t= . -~ 
1 13) Drive~;vays NOTE i2 0!\' PLAN I 

~ 1 4) -::;;;;:~;;;oxic Materials N/A ·---~ 
j 

~-Filling & Excavation: ~iA ---~------~--------------- --~ 

-----------------

1 16) Wetlands: NOTE 8 ON PLAN l 
I I 
rl ~-~~-~---~~~~----------------------------------~J 
1 17) Surface Waters: NOTE 8 

-------------------------------------~~ 
r------~ ~---------------------------------------~ 

18) Stump Dumps: NOTE 14 ON PLAN ! 
r--~--~--~---------------------------------------------------------~ 

l 
19) Architecture & Visual Appearance: N/A 

------

--------------·-----·-------------------------
i 

--------~--~·-J 

K:\Administration- Planning Depar!ment\FORMS\Subdivision\Subdivision Application.docx 6.16.2017 

Page 53 of 79



Page 54 of 79



Page 55 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

S-06-17     2-Lot Subdivision – 490 Washington St. 
  
Request: 

Applicant Toby Tousley proposes a 2-lot 
subdivision for the parcel located at 490 
Washington Street.  This proposal would 
subdivide the existing 2.795 acre lot (TMP 
012-02-005-0000) into one, 0.325 acre lot and 
one, 2.47 acre lot. The parcel is located in the 
Low Density zoning district approximately ¼ 
mile north of the Keene Recreation Center.  

Background: 

The parcel with its existing residence is shown 
outlined in orange in Figure 1 on the west side 
of Washington Street.  The parcel contains a 
gravel drive that wraps through the property on 
the south side of a wetland area and on to its 
back, southeast corner. The original parcel is 
served by two driveways (shown with yellow 
arrows in Figure 1.) which, per the City’s 
Engineering Department, were present prior to 
the City’s driveway ordinance’s inception, thus 
legal.  A tip-down of uncertain origin (noted 
with a blue arrow in Figure 1.) exists along the 
original parcel’s southern Washington St. 

frontage.  

The parcel also contains 0.776 acres of 
wetlands. Per Article XVI- SURFACE 
WATER PROTECTION Division 1. 
Sec. 102-1493 the required buffer is 30’ 
in the Low Density zoning district. The 
area of buffer is 0.628 acres.  Sec. 102-
1494 (a) states: “For purposes of 
calculating the minimum lot size for the 
subdivision of land, areas of surface 
water resources as defined in this article 
shall be excluded from the area used to 
calculate the minimum lot size.”  
However, (b) of this same section states: 
“Buffers adjacent to surface water 
resources as defined in this article shall 
be included in the calculation of 
minimum lot size.” Therefore the 
original 2.795 acre parcel minus the 0.77 
acre wetland area and the existing, 0.325 
acre house parcel leaves 1.7 acres or 

 

Figure 1: Existing Residence with Two Driveways at                  
490 Washington Street 

 

Figure 2: Developable Areas in Green & Brown 

Page 56 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 
74,052 SF.  The minimum lot area in the Low Density zoning district is 10,000 SF.  Therefore the 
required minimum lot area is available. However, as shown in Figure 2, the developable areas are 
dispersed throughout the proposed, new parcel. 

 
Completeness: 
 
The Applicant has supplied the following drawing: “Two-Lot Subdivision, Land of Toby Tousley, Tax 
Map Parcel No. 012-02-005-0000, 490 Washington Street, Keene, Cheshire County, New Hampshire”, 1” 
= 30’, dated July 10, 2017. The Applicant has requested site-specific exemptions from the site features 
that are not present on the site (i.e. stonewalls, cellar holes, etc.).  Additional exemptions are: 
 

1. Proposed Conditions Plan – proposed contours at minimum intervals of five feet, and the location 
of proposed light fixtures.   

 
2. The entire Grading Plan 

 
3. The entire Landscaping Plan 

 
4. The entire Lighting Plan 

 
5. Technical Reports – drainage report, traffic report, and documentation of all test pits. 

 
After reviewing the requests, staff recommends that the Board grant all the exemptions and open the 
public hearing for S-06-17.  As a reminder, the Board has 65 days to make a decision on an application 
once the Public Hearing has been opened.    
 

Departmental Comments: 

Engineering: 

Survey Plan:  
1. Please differentiate between existing and proposed lot lines.  
2. Confirm that all lines and symbology used in the drawings is defined in the legend (For 
example, proposed property line, wetland delineation, etc.)  
 
Driveways:  
1. The existing property includes two curb openings, both of which were in existence prior to 
April 28, 1989. The applicant proposes to retain both in their current configuration.  
 
2. In accordance with Sec. 70-135 of the City Code, a separate driveway permit is not required if 
the proposed driveways or modifications are approved as part of a subdivision plan. We 
recommend the Applicant include modifications of the driveway as part of this plan rather than 
go through a separate review process at a later date.  
 
3. The existing driveway crosses the proposed property line. If the applicant’s intent is to create a 
shared driveway, the legal status of the shared driveway should be recorded as a deeded 
easement. If the applicant’s intention is not to create a shared driveway, these driveways should 
be physically separated. These proposed driveways should comply with requirements for parking 
and driveways found elsewhere in the Code.  

Page 57 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

 
4. The northernmost driveway location does not satisfy the requirements for 200’ sight distance 
without clearing vegetation. Vegetation management to create adequate sight distance should be 
a condition of approval.  
 
5. The curb line along the southern frontage includes a depressed area of granite curb. Within 
the depressed area, the curb reveal is approximately 3” rather than the normal 7”. Public works 
records indicate that the curbing was constructed this way during the recent reconstruction of 
Washington Street, although the purpose is not clear. There is no pre-existing approved driveway 
at this location.  
 
6. Although the applicant has not proposed a driveway at the depressed area, it should be noted 
that topography to North of this location greatly reduces current sight distance. No future 
driveway at this location should be permitted without significant excavation and/or grading of the 
embankment to the North. In addition, vegetation to the South obstructs sight distance in that 
direction.  
 
Drainage:  
1. This parcel is subject to a drainage easement granted to the City of Keene in 1889. The deed 
for the newly created lot must reflect this existing drainage easement.  
 
2. During the reconstruction of Washington Street, the City’s consultant recommended the 
installation of a large-diameter drain across the southeastern corner of this parcel. Public Works 
continues to believe that this drainage improvement will be required in the future. Engineering 
Staff has contacted the applicant and will be discussing this matter in more detail. 
 

Police: Staff was not available to comment. 

Fire:  No issues. 

Code: “Spoke with … SVE about the concern with the shared driveway and the access for the garage 
being across the proposed property line also the parking surface/driveway being within 3 feet of the side 
property line.  

Sec. 102-794. - Parking lot and parking space requirements: (a) Parking lots. Parking lots shall: 
(5) Parking areas not included in article VI, division 4, shall have the parking surface 
located to the rear of the front setback or building line and the surface shall be at least three 
feet from the side property line.” 

 

Application Analysis: 

The following is a review of the Board’s relevant development standards in relation to the proposed 
application: 

1. Drainage: No new development is proposed, however, as communicated by the City’s Engineering 
Department, a drainage easement was granted to the City of Keene in 1889.  Discussions are pending 
between the City Engineer and the applicant on this subject.  

Page 58 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 
2. Sedimentation & Erosion Control: As no new development is proposed, this standard appears to be 
met.  

4. Snow Storage and Removal: Both proposed lots would have sufficient space to manage and store snow.  

5. Flooding:  The proposed parcel is located in Zone X, not within a special flood hazard area for 
FEMA’s 2006 FIRM (Flood Insurance Rate Map). However, the 2005 flood extended to the east side of 
Washington Street in this same location.    

13. Comprehensive Access Management: Per Dev. Standard 13.c. The City’s Engineering staff suggests 
that the existing northern access should become a common driveway access for the new parcel(s).  The 
City’s Engineering staff has stated that the existing tip down at the southern frontage should not be an 
allowable, future curb cut due to poor sight lines for Washington Street vehicular traffic.  

16. Wetlands:  As shown in blue on Figure 2, the existing wetlands occupy the majority of the central and 
northern area of the proposed new parcel.  Impacting the existing wetland with a proposed, future 
development would require a permit application with the Wetlands Bureau of the NH Department of 
Environmental Services (DES).   

17. Surface Waters:  The buffer areas of the proposed lot are highlighted in green on Figure 2.  Per Sec. 
102-1488, the City of Keene allows for the disturbance of the protective, wetland buffer for new 
structures, roads, driveways, stormwater management structures and compensatory flood storage through 
the approval of a Conditional Use Permit application. This type of request is approved only when all of 
the following criteria specified in Sec. 102-1490 have been met, as decided by the Planning Board: 

“(a) The proposed use and/or activity cannot be located in a manner to avoid encroachment into 
the overlay district. 

(b) Encroachment into the buffer zone has been minimized to the maximum extent possible, 
including reasonable modification of the scale or design of the proposed use. 

(c) The nature, design, siting, and scale of the proposed use and the characteristics of the site 
including but not limited to topography, soils, vegetation, and habitat are such that when taken as 
a whole, will avoid the potential for adverse impacts to the surface water resource. 

(d) The buffer zone shall be maintained in a natural state to the maximum extent possible. In 
granting a conditional use permit, the planning board may establish conditions of approval 
regarding the preservation of the buffer including the extent to which trees, saplings and ground 
cover shall be preserved. 

(1) Dead, diseased, unsafe, or fallen trees, saplings, shrubs, or ground cover may be 
removed. 

(2) Stumps and their root systems shall be left intact in the ground, unless removal is 
specifically approved in conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit granted by the 
planning board. 

(3) Exotic, invasive trees, saplings, shrubs, or ground covers, as defined by NHDES, may 
be removed. The stumps and root balls of exotic, invasive species may also be removed 
by hand digging and/or hand cutting. 

Page 59 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

(4) Preservation of dead and living trees that provide dens and nesting places for wildlife 
is encouraged. Planting of native species of trees, shrubs, or ground cover that are 
beneficial to wildlife is encouraged. 

 (5) Where there has been disturbance or alteration of this buffer during construction, 
excavation, or grading, re-vegetation with native species may be required by the 
planning board. 

(e) With the exception of state permitted wetlands crossings, and in zoning districts listed 
in section 102-1493, a non-disturbance buffer zone shall be maintained to at least 30 feet from 
the delineated edge of the surface water.” 

Buffer impacts adjacent to wetland impacts being reviewed by the NH DES are exempt from Sec. 102-
1488.  

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

If the Board is inclined to approve the Application, the following motion is recommended: 
 

Approve S-06-17, as shown on the plan identified as “Two-Lot Subdivision, Land of Toby Tousley, Tax 
Map Parcel No. 012-02-005-0000, 490 Washington Street, Keene, Cheshire County, New Hampshire”, 
1” = 30’, dated July 10, 2017, received July 24, 2017, prepared by Russ Huntley, LLS, at a scale of 1” = 
30’, with the following conditions: 
 

1) Revise the subdivision survey plan to: 

a. Graphically differentiate between existing and proposed lot lines.  

b. Include in the legend all lines and symbology shown in the drawings. 

c. Contain additional notes:  

i. “The proposed 2.47-acre lot at 490 Washington St. is subject to an existing 
drainage easement granted to the City of Keene in 1889.” 

ii. “For reasons of roadway topography, public safety and limited sightline access, 
the proposed 2.47-acre lot at 490 Washington St. shall not have vehicular 
access or a curb cut along its southern Washington St. frontage. 

d. Contain a modified northern driveway which: 

i. Meets the City’s Sec. 70-135 Driveway Permit and Standards requirements. 

ii. Requires adequate vegetation removal to provide improved visual access of 
Washington Street vehicular traffic in a form acceptable to the City Engineer. 

2) “Owner’s signature on plan prior to approval. 

 

Page 60 of 79

https://library.municode.com/nh/keene/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH102ZO_ARTXVISUWAPR_DIV4SPPR_S102-1493REBUZOWI


CITY OF KEENE I PLANNING BOARD 
SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 

Tax Map Paree nmnber(s) 
0 1) _ o')_ _ 00 .r- . ouoo 
-~- - - ~t..)... __ ----

__CLl_l...,_ - 0 ~ - _Q_Q.L_ . _QI_!!!!__ 
Date Application is Complete: 

Planning Department File#: S-O ~ - } 
Project 
Address: lf C,o {,J,A-J~o1)'!~ 

Acreage/Sj. 
of Parcel: ... 'to I I f!t;. 'f_ 21> 

~Jc;) /7 104 

Zoning .. ~ 

District: 
I 

/)ti\£ I 1'y Lait.1 

...... 
0 
~ 

Q 

....... 

0.. 
0.. 

< 

Name: ~ L ,--;--
Address: 

Telephone/E-mail: 
-f w '/12 

Signature: ~ 

Name: 

Address: 

Telephone/E-mail: 

Signature: 

60] 17 ~ )-!}J-1 

e. <U\.rl t t .·-

Descriptive Narrative Including 
1· 

Sedimentation Control Scope/scale of development .. 1:211 ype of development .. 
/ 

J21 Proposed uses ~arcel size 

/ Jl Location of access points 

~Vegetation 

~ebris management ~roposed stonnwater, drainage & erosion plan 

-~n other descri tive information 

A complete application must include the following 

aTwo (2) copies of completed application fonns signed & dated 

;;;r'Two (2) copies of descriptive narrative 

~Notarized list of all owners of property within 200' 

~Two (2) sets of mailing labels, per abutter 

~even (7) co ies on "D" size paper of Jans (24" x 36") 

V iJ1 ,I 
D Plans stamped/signed by reg. professional p; J /J' j hoW; 

.ef Two (2) copies on I I" x 17" 

Cl Three (3) copies of all technical reports 

D A check to cover the costs of legal notice to advertise 

the public hearing, mailing notices out to abutters 

K:\Adminislration - Planning Departmenl\FORMS\Subdivision\Subdivision Application.docx 6.16.2017 Page 61 of 79



• 

Descriptive Narrative 

Tousley Subdivision 490 Washington St 

This is a simple subdivision of a 2.75 acre lot into two house lot parcels. Basically this is drawing 3 lines 

around the existing house and creating a 14,164 sq ft !ot with 118 feet of street frontage on Washington 

St. 

The remaining 107,551 sq ft building lot will have 2 lines of frontage on Washington St of 62 feet and 

121 feet. 

Currently there are 2 existing curb cuts on the Northeasterly part of the property. There is no proposed 

change in curb cuts. 

Currently there are existing driveways servicing both lots. There is no proposed change for driveways. 

There is no proposed changes other than drawing 3 lines on a map. 

No Sedimentation control proposed 

No vegetation changes proposed 

No debris management needed 

No existing stump dumps none proposed 

No proposed change to storm water or drainage 

Page 62 of 79



K:\ENGNRNG\Site Plan Review\490 Whasington Street\Comments Memo_YD_2017 0803.docx 

CITY OF KEENE 
NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 
Public Works Department 

 
 
Date:  August 18, 2017 
 
To:  Michelle Chalice, Planner 
 
Through: Donald R. Lussier, P.E., City Engineer 
 
From:  Yelma Desseta, Civil Engineer 
 
Subject: 490 Washington Street(S-06-17)  

 
 
Background: 
 
The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division received the following documents in our 
office on August 3, 2017 for review and comments. 
 

• Survey Plan entitled “2 Lot Subdivision” prepared by SVE Associates, dated July 1, 
2017. 
 

The Engineering Division reviewed the above documents and made comments in conformance 
with standard engineering practice and compliance with City of Keene Subdivision Rules and 
Regulations (Sec. 70-121. Lot monuments and Sec. 102 -791 Basic Zone Dimension 
Requirement).  
 
Survey Plan: 
 

1. Please differentiate between existing and proposed lot lines. 
2. Confirm that all lines and symbology used in the drawings is defined in the legend (For 

example, proposed property line, wetland delineation, etc.)  
 
Driveways: 
 

1. The existing property includes two curb openings, both of which were in existance prior 
to April 28, 1989.  The applicant proposes to retain both in their current configuration. 

2. In accordance with Sec. 70-135 of the City Code, a separate driveway permit is not 
required if the proposed driveways or modifications are approved as part of a subdivision 
plan.  We recommend the Applicant include modifications of the driveway as part of this 
plan rather than go through a separate review process at a later date. 

3. The existing driveway crosses the proposed property line.  If the applicant’s intent is to 
create a shared driveway, the legal status of the shared driveyway should be recorded as a 

Page 63 of 79



K:\ENGNRNG\Site Plan Review\490 Whasington Street\Comments Memo_YD_2017 0803.docx 

deeded easement.  If the applicant’s intention is not to create a shared driveway, these 
driveways should be physically separated.  These proposed driveways should comply 
with requirements for parking and driveways found elsewhere in the Code. 

4. The northernmost driveway location does not satisfy the requirements for 200’ sight 
distance without clearing vegetation.  Vegetation management to create adequate sight 
distance should be a condition of approval.  

5. The curb line along the southern frontage includes a depressed area of granite curb.  
Within the depressed area, the curb reveal is approximately 3” rather than the normal 7”.  
Public works records indicate that the curbing was constructed this way during the recent 
reconstruction of Washington street, although the purpose is not clear.  There is no pre-
existing approved driveway at this location. 

6. Although the applicant has not proposed a driveway at the depressed area, it should be 
noted that topography to North of this location greatly reduces current sight distance.  No 
future driveway at this location should be permitted without significant excavation and/or 
grading of the embankment to the North.  In addition, vegetation to the South obstructs 
sight distance in that direction. 

 
Drainage: 
 

1. This parcel is subject to a drainage easement granted to the City of Keene in 1889.  The 
deed for the newly created lot must reflect this existing drainage easement. 

2. During the reconstruction of Washington Street, the City’s consultant recommended the 
installation of a large-diameter drain across the southeastern corner of this parcel.  Public 
Works continues to believe that this drainage improvement will be required in the future.  
Engineering Staff has contacted the applicant and will be discussing this matter in more 
detail. 

Page 64 of 79



Page 65 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

SPR-967 MOD. 8G – RAILROAD LAND DEVELOPMENT PARKING LOT – 0 CYPRESS ST 

   

Request: 

Rob Hitchcock, on behalf of owner, Railroad Street Condominium Association, requests the expansion of 

the existing parking lot at 0 Cypress Street 22-feet to the south to accommodate four additional parking 

spaces.  The lot is 9.28 acres and is located in the Central Business Zoning District, TMP #023-04-027. 

 

Background: 

The Applicant proposes to expand the 101-space parking lot at 0 Cypress Street, which is located to the 

south of the Monadnock Food Coop building.  To accommodate 4 new parking spaces, the Applicant 

proposes to relocate the existing row of 8 parking spaces at the far southern end of the parking lot 22-feet 

to the south. This extension would provide space for the installation of 4 parking spaces along the western 

side of the lot in its southwestern corner.  In the area where the parking lot will be expanded, there is 

currently a grass lawn adjacent to a fenced-in playground. To make room for the proposed extension of 

pavement/parking, an existing storage shed, planters, and an established shade tree will need to be 

removed.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N 

Monadnock Food Coop 

Photo to the Right: This aerial image was taken in 

2015 and displays current site conditions.  Above 

Photo: The above image displays the parking 

spaces that are proposed to be added and relocated 

in the Coop parking lot.    

PLAYGROUND 

Curb to be 
removed & 

existing row of 8 
parking spaces 
to be extended 
22’ to the south 

Location of relocated 
parking 

New parking  
spaces 

Page 66 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

The Planning Board reviewed a proposal nearly identical to this site plan at its meeting in July of 2013. 

The only difference between this current proposal and the plan reviewed in 2013 is that the shed and 

planters were not present in 2013. This site plan application was denied by the Planning Board at the 

October 27, 2014 meeting.  The Board came to this decision following more than a year of requests from 

the Applicant to continue the public hearing and extend the decision deadline for this application.  At that 

time, the Board raised the following concerns with this proposal:  Whether there is significant evidence 

demonstrating demand for the additional parking; the impacts of the proposed increase in impervious 

surface; the loss of a shade tree to accommodate the parking; and, whether the proximity of parking to the 

playground is appropriate for safety.   

  

In a separate application in January of 2017, the Planning Board approved the Railroad Land 

Development LLC’s request to use a vacant gravel lot to the east of the Coop as a temporary parking area 

for a period of two years. The Board approved this request with the following condition:  

“1. Prior to signature, Applicant shall submit: 

a) A letter from the property owner stating that the remaining work that was approved as part of 

SPR-967 Mod. 8 A as subsequently modified, with the exception of the prior approved temporary 

parking lot conditions, will be completed before the end of July 2017. 

b) Security, in an amount and form deemed acceptable by the City Engineer and Planning Director, 

for the following work, which remain incomplete from the approval of SPR-967 Mod. 8A:  

i. laying the final course of pavement on the existing parking area and installing 

curbed/landscaped islands in the parking lot interior; 

ii. installation of concrete sidewalks and walkways in locations approved to be asphalt as 

part of SPR-967 Mod 8A.” 

The Railroad Land Development LLC has yet to resolve the compliance issues with the original site plan 

for the Monadnock Food Coop (SPR-967 Mod8A) identified in Condition 1.b above. As these conditions 

were not met within 180 days of the Board’s decision, the approval for this site plan has expired. Per the 

approval granted for Site Plan SPR-967 Mod 8A, the gravel area (the site of the proposed temporary 

parking lot) is to be returned to loam and seed.   

 

Completeness: 

The Applicant has requested exemptions from the site-specific requirements such as a separate lighting or 

landscape plan, visual and architectural details as well as the various technical reports: traffic, and soils. 

After review of this request, Staff has determined that exempting the Applicant from submitting this 

information would have no bearing on the merits of the application as the proposal is for a temporary use 

of the site and recommends that the Planning Board grant these applications and accept the application as 

“complete.” 

 

Departmental comments: 

Code: “No Issues.” 
 

Engineering: “Provide drainage calculations to demonstrate no net change in runoff.  Specifically, 

calculation should account for added parking spaces and the proposed pavement area. Recommend the 

applicant confirm proposed site grade. Some areas appear to have as little as 0.5% slope and may create 

ponding / icing  issues.” 
 

Fire: “No issues” 

   

Application Analysis: 

The following is a review of the Board’s relevant standards in relation to the proposed application: 
 

1. Drainage: In their application, the Applicant notes that there will be no changes to drainage on the 

site. Due to the proposed increase in impervious surface area, staff have requested the Applicant work 

Page 67 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

with the City Engineer to determine the appropriate method for demonstrating that the proposed work 

meets this development standard.  More information related to this standard will be provided at the 

meeting on August 28.   

 

2. Sedimentation and Erosion Control:  The Applicant will be installing silt fencing around the 

perimeter of the proposed work area and will be installing filter socks in the existing catch basins  in 

the parking lot to trap any sediment during construction. This standard appears to be met.  

  

3.   Hillside Protection: There are no steep slopes on or near this site. This standard is not applicable.  

 

4. Snow Storage: The Applicant notes that there will be no change in snow storage on the site. The 

original site plan (SPR-967 Mod. 8A) for this parking lot displays the area for snow storage along the 

eastern edge of the parking lot. This proposal does not appear to have an impact on this designated 

area for snow storage.  However, the space between the existing playground fence and the parking 

area will be reduced from 28-feet to 7-feet as a result of this proposal.  Depending on how the lot is 

plowed, this may lead to compaction of snow against the fence surrounding the playground in the 

winter months.   

 

5. Flooding:  The site is not located in the 100-year flood plain; therefore, no Floodplain Permit is 

needed. This standard appears to be met.  

 

6. Landscaping:  The Applicant proposes to install a row of 25 lilac shrubs in the space between the 

parking area and the existing playground.  This landscaping will serve as a vegetative buffer and 

screen the parking lot from playground area. The extension of the parking lot to the south will require 

the removal of an established shade tree in the grassy area between the existing parking lot and the 

existing playground.  In 2013, when this proposal was first before the Planning Board, there were 

concerns expressed by Board members for the loss of this shade tree. While there is limited space to 

replace this tree in the area near the playground, the Board may consider asking the Applicant to 

replace the tree in an alternate location on the site.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Noise: The proposed temporary use of this site as a parking area will not result in a significant 

increase in noise on the surrounding area.  The standard appears to be met.  

 

Shade Tree proposed 

for removal (This photo 

was taken facing south) 

Page 68 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

8. Screening:  The four new parking spaces in the southwest corner of the lot will be screened by an 

existing structure on an adjacent property.  The Applicant proposes to install a row of lilac shrubs 

between the row of 8 spaces at the southern end of the parking lot and the existing playground area.  

These shrubs will provide some screening of the vehicles from the playground area.   

 

 

 

 

9. Air Quality:  No impact to air quality is anticipated as a result of this proposal. This standard appears 

to be met.  

 

10. Lighting: The Applicant is not proposing to remove any existing or to install any new lighting. This 

standard appears to be met. 

 

11. Sewer and Water: The proposed expansion of the parking area does not necessitate the need for sewer 

or water services. This standard appears to be met.  

 

12. Traffic: Only four parking spaces will be added to the existing parking lot as part of this proposal.  

The additional spaces will have minimal impact on traffic generated to and from the site. This 

standard appears to be met.  

 

13. Comprehensive Access Management: The design for 

the proposed parking spaces at the southwestern 

corner of the lot provides minimal space for the 

vehicles parking at the corner of the lot to exit and 

enter the spaces.  While each parking space is 

designed to be 9-feet wide x 18-feet long, which 

meets the City’s standards for parking areas, the 

limited distance between the two opposing parking 

spaces at the corner of the lot presents potential 

concerns for vehicle conflicts.   

 

  

14. Hazardous and Toxic Materials:  Not applicable.   

 

15. Filling / Excavation: The Applicant notes that this development will comply with the City’s Fill and 

Excavation Regulations.   

 

16. Wetlands: No wetlands are present on the site. This standard appears to be met.   

 

17.Surface Waters: No surface waters are present on the site. This standard appears to be met.  

 

Photo to the right: This 

photo is taken facing the 

southwest corner of the 

parking lot. The 4 new 

parking spaces are 

proposed to be located in 

front of the red storage 

structure. 

Page 69 of 79



STAFF REPORT 
 

18. Stump Dumps: This standard is not applicable.  

 

19. Architectural and Visual Appearance:  The proposed parking lot expansion would be primarily to the 

rear or side of existing structures. As noted in #8 this parking will be screened by an existing structure to 

the west and by a row of lilac shrubs along the parking lot’s southern edge. This standard appears to be 

met.   

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

 

Staff will provide a recommended motion at the August 28, 2017 Planning Board meeting.   

 

  

Page 70 of 79



Page 71 of 79



Page 72 of 79



Page 73 of 79



Page 74 of 79



Page 75 of 79



Associates
SVE

NOTES AND
CONSTRUCTION
DETAILS

RAILROAD LAND
DEVELOPMENT,
LLC

RAILROAD LAND
DEVELOPMENT,
LLC

N-1

P:
\p

ro
je

ct
\K

17
45

C 
Ra

ilr
oa

d 
La

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

LL
C\

K1
74

5C
\K

17
45

C 
SI

TE
.d

w
g,

 8
/1

0/
20

17
 1

0:
12

:4
0 

AM
,

D
W

G
 T

o 
PD

F.
pc

3 Page 76 of 79



[23-02-001]

[23-04-027]

Associates
SVE

0 20' 40'

EXISTING
CONDITIONS  PLAN

S-1

RAILROAD LAND
DEVELOPMENT,
LLC

RAILROAD LAND
DEVELOPMENT,
LLC

P:
\p

ro
je

ct
\K

17
45

C 
Ra

ilr
oa

d 
La

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

LL
C\

K1
74

5C
\K

17
45

C 
SI

TE
.d

w
g,

 8
/1

0/
20

17
 1

0:
12

:4
3 

AM
,

D
W

G
 T

o 
PD

F.
pc

3 Page 77 of 79



[23-02-001]

[23-04-027]

Associates
SVE

0 20' 40'

SITE, GRADING &
DRAINAGE  PLAN

C-1

0 20' 40'

0 60' 120'

RAILROAD LAND
DEVELOPMENT,
LLC

RAILROAD LAND
DEVELOPMENT,
LLC

P:
\p

ro
je

ct
\K

17
45

C 
Ra

ilr
oa

d 
La

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

LL
C\

K1
74

5C
\K

17
45

C 
SI

TE
.d

w
g,

 8
/1

0/
20

17
 1

0:
12

:4
8 

AM
,

D
W

G
 T

o 
PD

F.
pc

3 Page 78 of 79



Page 79 of 79


	MOCO PB Packet.pdf
	SPR_FINAL
	Application
	SPR-09-17 Full plan set.pdf
	G-001.pdf
	G-004.pdf
	Sheets
	G-004 - Typ Mounting Heights - Egress & Photoluminescent Markings



	A-200.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201 - Floor Plan - 1st Floor


	A-202.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201.1 - Floor Plan - 2nd Floor


	g-001.pdf
	Sheets
	G-001 - General Notes and Drawing List


	C dwgs-MAY 5 CD SET.pdf
	MOCO7 3042 EXIST (1).pdf
	MOCO7 3042 PROP (1).pdf

	A-COVER.pdf
	Sheets
	G-000 - Cover Sheet


	e-11.pdf
	G-001.pdf
	G-004.pdf
	Sheets
	G-004 - Typ Mounting Heights - Egress & Photoluminescent Markings



	A-200.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201 - Floor Plan - 1st Floor


	A-202.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201.1 - Floor Plan - 2nd Floor


	g-001.pdf
	Sheets
	G-001 - General Notes and Drawing List


	A-COVER.pdf
	Sheets
	G-000 - Cover Sheet



	Cover.pdf
	Sheets
	G-000 - Cover Sheet



	SPR-09-17 Full plan set
	G-001.pdf
	G-004.pdf
	Sheets
	G-004 - Typ Mounting Heights - Egress & Photoluminescent Markings



	A-200.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201 - Floor Plan - 1st Floor


	A-202.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201.1 - Floor Plan - 2nd Floor


	g-001.pdf
	Sheets
	G-001 - General Notes and Drawing List


	C dwgs-MAY 5 CD SET.pdf
	MAY 5 CD SET.pdf
	MOCO7 3042 LIGHT (1).pdf
	MOCO7 3042 DET (1).pdf


	A-COVER.pdf
	Sheets
	G-000 - Cover Sheet


	e-11.pdf
	G-001.pdf
	G-004.pdf
	Sheets
	G-004 - Typ Mounting Heights - Egress & Photoluminescent Markings



	A-200.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201 - Floor Plan - 1st Floor


	A-202.pdf
	Sheets
	A-201.1 - Floor Plan - 2nd Floor


	g-001.pdf
	Sheets
	G-001 - General Notes and Drawing List


	A-COVER.pdf
	Sheets
	G-000 - Cover Sheet



	Cover.pdf
	Sheets
	G-000 - Cover Sheet



	08-04-17 Status of MOCO Site Plan
	Lighting Condition
	signage solution

	S-04-17 62 Nims Rd Packet_updated 81817.pdf
	S-04-17 Staff Report_081817
	App and Revised Narrative and Waiver
	Revised Subdivision Plan 081417 11x17

	S-05-17  618 Court Packet.pdf
	SR_FINAL
	S-05-17  2-Lot Subdivision –618 Court St.

	Comments Memo_YD_2017 0803
	Narrative and Application
	Subdivision Plan
	Letter of concern from abutter

	S-06-17 490 Washington Packet.pdf
	SR_FINAL
	S-06-17     2-Lot Subdivision – 490 Washington St.

	Application
	Comments Memo_YD_2017 0803 (2)
	Subdivision Plan

	SPR 967 Mod 8 G Packet.pdf
	App and Narrative and Comment Response
	Drainage Analysis
	Drainage Map
	K1745C SITE Plan 11x17




